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1. Name of Property

historic name__ Keller, Christian and Anna, Farmstead

other names/site number Kohl, Mel and Ruth, Farmstead

2. Location

street & number _ 936 Kohl Country Lane [N/A] not for publication
city or town Gerald [X] vicinity

state _ Missouri code _MO county _ Franklin code _071 zip code 63037

3. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended, | hereby certify that this

[X] nomination [ ] request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the National
Register of Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60. [n my opinion, the
property [X] meets [ ] does not meet the National Register criteria. | recommend that this property be considered significant [ ] nationalty
[ ]statewide [X] locally.

( See continuation sheet for additional comments [ |.)

i F P ope /72007

Signature of certifying official/Title Mark A. Miles/Deputy SHPO Date

Missouri Department of Natural Resources
State or Federal agency and bureau

In_my opinion, the property [ ] meets ‘ ] does not meet the National Register criteria.
( Seé continuation 'sheet for additional comments [ ].)

Signature of certifying official/Title

State or Federal agency and bureau

[ 4. National Park Service Certification

| hereby certify that the property is: Signature of the Keeper Date

[ ]entered in the National Register
See continuation sheet [ |.
[ ] determined eligible for the
National Register
See continuation sheet [ |.
[ ] determined not eligible for the
National Register.
[ ]1removed from the
National Register
[ ] other, explain .
See continuation sheet [ |.
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5. Classification

Ownership of Property Category of Property
[X] private [X] building(s)
[ ] public-local [ ] district
[ ] public-State [ ]site
[ ] public-Federal [ ] structure
[ ] object

Name of related multiple property listing.

N/A

Number of Resources within Property
Contributing Noncontributing
2 buildings
1 sites
1 2 structures
objects
3 3 Total

Number of contributing resources
previously listed in the National
Register.

0

6. Function or Use

Historic Function

DOMESTIC: Single Dweiling
AGRICULTURE/SUBSISTENCE: Agricul |
Field

AGRICULTURE/SUBSISTENCE: Agricultural
Outbuilding

AGRICULTURE/SUBSISTENCE: Processing
AGRICULTURE/SUBSISTENCE:Animal Facility

Current Functions

DOMESTIC: Single Dwelling

AGRICUL TURE/SUBSISTENCE.- Agricultural
Field

AGRICULTURE/SUBSISTENCE: Agricultural
Outbuilding
AGRICULTURE/SUBSISTENCE: Processing

AGRICULTURE/SUBSISTENCE:Animal Facility

[7. Description

|

Architectural Classification
MID-19™ CENTURY
OTHER/German Bankhouse

Narrative Description

Materials
foundation_STONE/L imestone
walls BRICK

roof ASPHALT
other WOOD/Weatherboard

(Describe the historic and current condition of the property on one or more continuation sheets.)
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8. Statement of Significance

Applicable National Register Criteria

[x] A Property is associated with events that have made a
significant contribution to the broad patterns of our history

[ 1B Property is associated with the lives of persons
significant in our past

x] C Property embodies the distinctive characteristics of a

e, period, or method of construction or represents the work
of a master, or possesses high artistic values, or represents a
significant and distinguishable entity whose components lack
individual distinction.

1 D Property has yielded, or is likely to yield, information
important in prehistory or history.
Criteria Considerations
Property is:

[ 1A owned by a religious institution or used for religious
purposes.

[ 1B removed from its original location.

[ 1C abirthplace or grave.

[ 1D acemetery.

[ ]1E areconstructed building, object, or structure.
[ ]1F acommemorative property.

[ ]hG less than 50 years of age or achieved significance
within the past 50 years.

Narrative Statement of Significance

Areas of Siﬂnificance

EXPLORATION/SETTI EMENT
ARCHITECTURE

Periods of Significance
1855-1889

Significant Dates
1855

Significant Person(s
NI ’

Cultural Affiliation
N/A

Architect/Builder
Keller, Christian, Builder

(Explain the significance of the property on one or more continuation sheets.)

9. Major Bibliographic References

Biblio

raphy
(Cite the%oofs, articles and other sources used in preparing this form on one or more continuation sheets.)

Previous documentation on file (NPS):

L | preliminary determination of individual listing (36 CFR 67)
as been requested

[ ]previously listed in the National Register
[ ]previously determined eligible by the National Register
[ ]designated a National Historic Landmark

[ ]recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey

#
[ 1recorded by Historic American Engineering Record
#

Primary location of additional data:
[ X] State Historic Preservation Office
[ ]Other State Agency

[ ]Federal Agency

[ ]Local Government

[ 1University

[ ]Other:

Name of repository:
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10. Geographical Data

Acreage of Property _ 77 acres
UTM References

A. Zone Easting Northing B. Zone Easting Northing

C. Zone Easting Northing D. Zone Easting Northing

[X] See continuation sheet

Verbal Boundary Description

(Describe the boundaries of the property on a continuation sheet.)

Boundary Justification
(Explain why the boundaries were selected on a continuation sheet.)

11. Form Prepared By

name/titte Karen Bode Baxter, Timothy P. Maloney, Ruth Keenoy

organization_ Karen Baxter, Preservation Consultant date__ 5/15/2009
street & number_5811 Delor telephone__ (314) 353-0593
city or town___St. Louis state_ MO zip code__ 63109

Additional Documentation
Submit the following items with the completed form:

Continuation Sheets
Maps

A USGS map (7.5 or 15 minute series) indicating the property's location.

A Sketch map for historic districts and properties having large acreage or numerous resources.
Photographs

Representative black and white photographs of the property.

Additional Items
(Check with the SHPO or FPO for any additional items)

Property Owner
(Complete this item at the request of SHPO or FPQO.)

name__ Mel and Ruth Kohl
street & number__ P. O. Box 197, also 1166 Valley Vue Pt. telephone__ (636) 458-2395
city or town___St. Albans state_ MO zip code__ 63073
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Narrative Description

SUMMARY

The Christian and Anna Keller Farmstead is located in the rolling hills of central Missouri, about
two miles north of the community of Gerald in Franklin County. A mile northeast of Gerald,
U.S. Highway 50 diverges from its old route, still known as Old Highway 50, and just north of
this connection, Tegeler Road angles northwest past its intersection with Wheeler Road (the
southern line of Section 36 in which this farmstead is located). From that point, Tegeler Road
meanders north to the southeast corner of the farmstead, forming a Y-intersection near the middle
of Section 36 where the gravel road, now named Kohl Country Lane, leads into the asymmetrical
seventy-seven acre property. Marking the end of the road in a shallow valley framed by woods is
the 1855-1860, one-and-one-half story, gabled roof, brick, German bank house clustered tightly
with 1ts associated outbuildings. The farmhouse (a contributing building) is nestled on the
hillside at the east side of the property, looking downhill across the pasture toward Cedar Fork
Creek (originally known as Keller Creek), which marks the edge of the woods spanning to the
ridge that forms the western edge of the property. The house is positioned as a useful reference
for the pioneering farmers, with its corners forming the compass points; the northwest elevation
and the simple entry provide easy access to the wooded northeast corner of the property with its
spring-fed pond (non-contributing site because of its 1977 expansion). The pond has provided
water to the house and farm since Keller established the farm in the 1850s. The dwelling’s
native stone foundation is not exposed at the north corner, and the land slopes downhill from this
point. The stone foundation forms a fully exposed floor level along the southeast elevation,
where the kitchen and lower level entry is positioned. Though originally serving as the rear
entry, the kitchen entrance is now used as the primary entry and faces the drive to the property,
providing easy access to the small, two-story, gabled roof barn with a shed-roofed extension (a
contributing building) that is situated just ten feet from the east corner of the house. Southeast of
the house 1s a hipped roofed chicken coop (a non-contributing structure). A wooden picket fence
frames the yard, surrounding the sides and lower level of the house. An old cistern pump (leading
to the cistern that is a contributing structure) is located near the south corner of the fence. At the
end of the road, the short driveway parallels the south side of the fence and leads into the shed-
roofed section of the barn. A fence intersects the southwest fagade and the northwest side of the
barn. Within the rear yard, obscured by the house, is a non-contributing above ground pool. The
property encompasses two contributing buildings (the farmhouse and barn), one contributing
structure (the cistern), two non-contributing structures (the chicken coop and the pool), and one
non-contributing site (the pond).
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CHRISTIAN AND ANNA KELLER FARMHOUSE

Built between 1855-1860 and designed to nestle into the side of the hill, this one-and-one-half
story, end gabled, brick bank house appears to be a two-and-one-half story house since the rock
faced, limestone foundation 1s fully exposed on the rear elevation. The house is made of local
diaspore clay bricks laid in a simple running bound pattern with brick segmental arches used for
the window and door openings. The window sills, as well as the foundation, are cut limestone
blocks. also found locally. Located near the center of the gable ridge is a brick chimney. The
northwest elevation, the original fagade, has a series of irregularly spaced, segmental arched
openings, with the simple entry doorway located near the north corner in the gable end. The door
is an original wood plank, Dutch door with large iron strap hinges. On the other half of the
facade are two multipaned, sashed windows. On the upper level is another tiny sashed window
opening.

Both side elevations have a sawtooth brick course just below the eaves and below the brick wall
is the stone foundation that is progressively more visible toward the rear (southeast elevation).
While the northeast elevation has only one sashed window near the north comer, the southwest
elevation has two sashed windows aligned below two gabled dormers with weathered Iap siding.
Another sashed window is situated in the foundation level near the south corner.

The rear (southeast gable end elevation) is now used as the primary entry, utilizing the doorway
in the fully exposed stone foundation level. The entrance, located at the lower level, originally
served as direct access to the kitchen from the cistern, barn and chicken coop. This door is a
simple wood plank door with a small square light divided into four panes by narrow muntins.
South of the door i1s a wood sashed window in the foundation level. The cormers of the
foundation are laid with massive limestone quoins, and the window and doorway have small
stones set to create the segmental arched openings. On the main level there are two additional
sashed windows, as well as another tiny sashed window on the upper level.

The interior of the lower level is divided into four primary spaces separated by massive limestone
walls. The floors on this level are brick. The south room serves as the kitchen while the east area
incorporates a modern restroom off the entry vestibule. Both of these areas have finished
ceilings, with exposed wood beams. In the vestibule is the open straight flight staircase to the
main level along the interior stone wall. This original staircase features a turned balustrade
railing that has a shaped top rail that curves into the top of the hand carved, conical, rolled wood
newel post. Cut deep into the bank of the hill, the other two rooms have barrel vaulted stone
ceilings and were originally used for food storage to store the artichoke and other plant seedlings
for the next year’s farm crops. The stone wall is deep enough between the south (kitchen) and
west rooms to incorporate the cooking hearth, which served double duty since there were vent
holes into the west room that could be opened to let that room serve as a smokehouse. The west
room still retains some of the meat hooks and a shallow shelf used for smoking meats.
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The main level of the house has plaster walls with exposed joists and wood flooring from the
upper (attic) level serving as the ceilings. The floors on this level are the original wide, pine
floorboards with tall, flat baseboards. The doorway between the front two rooms is a segmental
arched opening since this wall, while plastered, is a continuation of the stone masonry interior
demising wall. The doors to the back rooms, which originally led to two bedrooms, are the
original simple wood doors. The door to the east bedroom is wood plank while the one in the
south bedroom is a two panel door. Simple mitered corner trim surrounds these doors, the main
Dutch style door, and the windows. The main level is also divided into four primary spaces, with
the north room serving as an entry foyer with the staircase from the lower level having a
matching rolled newel post. The partially enclosed straight flight staircase to the upper level is
accessed from the east bedroom and is directly over the lower stairs. This staircase has a turned
wood newel post and balusters with beadboard walls. The west room, now serves as the living
room, has a brick chimney flue and a dated antique cast iron wood-burning stove.

The upper (attic) level has been left open as a sleeping loft with the side walls angled with the
roofline. The interior walls and ceiling on this level were finished recently with drywall. This
level retains the original wood post support and pine floorboards, including the floorboards set
loosely to form a secret storage compartment that folklore indicates as the location that the
Kellers successfully hid their money when Confederate raiders rampaged across the property.
The staircase on this level is finished identical to the main staircase with a matching newel post
and open railing.

The house. which is the central feature of the property site, is situated at the north end of Kohl
Country Lane. It is surrounded at the east by the barn, at the south by the cistern and road, at the
north by the pond (located approximately 350 feet north of the dwelling), and at the west by open
pastures/fields.

BARN

The transverse crib barn was likely a late nineteenth century addition to the property. This
assumption is based on the barn’s frame construction members. Some of the wood indicates
hand-hewn framing, whereas other pieces of lumber indicate rough saw marks, probably ripped
by a planing mill. The barn is a frame structure, with studs notched into the joist and roof
framing, not nailed, which is exposed on the interior. The main portion of the barn is two stories
tall and has a shallow pitched end gabled roof with a new standing seam metal roof. The front
faces southwest with a six-over-six wood sashed window on each level. On the southeast
elevation, there i1s a shed roofed, one-story, dirt floor wing (originally used for wagon and
machinery storage). A large doorway connects to the driveway on the fagade and two small four-
light windows on the side elevation. The roof decking has been replaced and now has an asphalt
shingle roof. On the other side of the main two-story section of the barn, set on the back half, is
another shed roofed wing. The small wing retains its old paired, wood planked doors on the
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back (northeast) wall and a small wood sashed window on the side elevation. Most of the barn’s
exterior has been overlaid with wide, horizontal masonite siding; but from the interior, it is
evident that the original siding was wide horizontal planks laid over the original stud framing.
Some walls are supported by what appear to be concrete footings. There is older five-inch
weatherboard siding on the northwest elevation in the interior corner created by the entry to the
summer kitchen and the adjacent one story wing. Also visible is an old vertical board door that
leads into the one story wing.

In the main section of the barn, the ground level is divided into four rooms. The rear half is split
between a storage room with a small vertical board door and a horse stall with a dirt floor that
opens into the shed roofed wagon storage section (to the southeast). The front half has a concrete
floor poured within the original wall footings. This appears to have served as a summer kitchen
with a cistern pump on the northwest wall and brick chimney flue in the south corner. Sturdy
paired. six panel doors connect to the shed roofed wagon storage section and a nine light, two
panel wood door leads outside (northwest elevation) where it is in close proximity to the south
corner of the house. The small north wing holds a much smaller enclosed storage room with a
herringbone patterned brick floor.

A steep enclosed staircase in the west corner extends along the southwest wall to access the open
hay lott on the upper level via an exterior, wood plank door on the northwest elevation. The hay
loft retains its original wood flooring and exposed framing. The barn, which 1s a contributing
building, 1s situated immediately east of the house.

CHICKEN COOP

The date of construction for the chicken coop is unknown, but appears to be an early twentieth
century structure based on the poured concrete slab foundation and stud framed walls which are
finished with stucco over older wood plank siding. The coop retains original six over six wood
sashed windows on each elevation. An original wood plank entry door is located on the southeast
elevation at the east corner. On the interior, the wood shelves and chicken nesting boxes are still
intact along with the original wood plank siding and exposed studs and roof joists. The shallow,
pyramidal roof of the chicken coop has a small cupola-like vent at its peak. The chicken coop is
non-contributing due to its age and current exterior finish, which post-dates the period of
significance. The structure is situated southeast of the house and barn.
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POND

Clearly visible in aerial photographs, the pond is triangular in shape with a curved spillway along
the base of the pond’s equilateral triangle. The top half of the triangle formed the original pond,
dating back to 1855 (possibly earlier) and the original triangular shape was documented by the
Soil Conservation Service’s 1977 plans to increase the pond’s capacity. The 1977 alterations
extended the base of the pond’s original triangular shape, which nearly doubled the pond’s
original size. Some of the original underground pipe system remains intact, extending along the
east side of the pond and connecting to the house. The pond is nestled into the edge of the
wooded hillside north of the farmhouse and outbuildings. Today the associated spillway is
ninety-seven feet across the base of the pond, forming a ten-foot wide levee. The fill height is
nearly cighteen feet deep. Due to the 1977 alterations, the pond is a non-contributing feature.

LANDSCAPE AND SETTING

The Keller farmhouse and related outbuildings are situated within the northeast quadrant of the
associated seventy-seven acre parcel. As noted, a small road, Kohl Country Lane, leads to the
farm from Tegeler Road, which extends northeast/southwest approximate 375 feet southeast of
the property boundary. Kohl Country Lane was the original road to the farm. Though current
farm acreage of seventy-seven acres is significantly reduced from the original one-hundred and
sixty acre parcel, the historic landscape patterns are clearly visible. Outside the nominated parcel,
the surrounding parcels are still primarily small farms and wooded hillsides. Even though some
properties have been legally subdivided into subdivision parcels they have not been developed
and have no physical evidence of changes to land use yet. Located centrally within the parcel are
two large fields. The fields are divided centrally by a brook that extends east-to-west across the
parcel from the house and outbuildings (east), emptying into Cedar Fork Creek (west). Cedar
Fork Creek extends south/north near the western border of the farmstead. Each of the central
fields encompasses thirteen acres — a total of twenty-six improved acres currently being used for
cattle grazing and hay production. According to 1870 and 1880 agricultural census records,
Christiun Keller’s farmstead held a total of thirty-five “improved” acres (tilled land). The 1880
census also indicates that the farm had five acres used for meadows, pastures and/or orchards.
Additionally Keller’s farm held 120 acres of wooded acreage. This is illustrated by the current
farm setting, which is bordered at all sides by heavily wooded acreage. An 1877 atlas of the
county illustrates that at that time, the farm held 160 acres. The farmhouse and associated
fields/orchards that appear on the map are consistent with the current farm layout. The
fields/orchards are situated immediately west of the house and adjacent to each other.
Outbuildings are located east of the dwelling. Also visible on the atlas 1s Cedar Fork Creek,
which follows the same general path as illustrated on the atlas.
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ALTERATIONS AND INTEGRITY ISSUES

The Christian and Anna Keller Farmstead retains its original 1855-1860 German bank house, its
most important resource, which has only been minimally altered to accommodate twenty-first
century living requirements. While some of the windows have been replaced with aluminum
multipaned windows, they were selected to closely match the remaining original wood sashed,
six over six windows, some of which remain in the house. Some kitchen cabinetry and
bathrooms have been added, but all without moving the primary interior walls. Besides this, the
only other alterations are the recently completed wall and ceiling finish added to the upper (attic)
level, the incorporation of electrical wiring, and the replacement of the roof with an asphalt
shingle roof. The original diaspore brick and limestone foundation walls are in good condition
and the house retains an original Dutch entry door.

Because of the barn’s utilitarian character and its frame construction, it did not hold up as well as
the brick house, requiring new roof decking on the shed roofed section when a new roof was
installed recently. Some of the siding has been overlaid with newer masonite siding, although
some of the older wide board horizontal siding is still visible under the masonite siding and in the
sheltered arca on the north and east sides of the barn. The interior comer facing west into the
fenced yard actually has some older five inch weatherboard siding. A concrete floor was added
at some point within the west room, probably when it served as a summer kitchen since it has the
pump to the cistern.

The chicken coop retains its original configuration, interior walls and shelving ledges for the
hens’ nests, but like the shed roofed wing of the bamn and the house, it has new asphalt roofing.
The stucco finish on the exterior appears to be a more recent alteration, but the original windows
and plank door are still intact. Though it is non-contributing, the coop adds to the overall rural
character of the property.

The pond was enlarged by the Soil Conservation Service in 1977, more than doubling its
capacity. The pond’s original triangular pond shape still forms the upper triangular section with
the new spillway at the base to the southeast. Some of the piping that led from the pond to the
cisterns and pumps to serve both the house kitchen and the barn is still intact underground, as are
the pumps in the barn and the cistern head in the yard. As is true for the chicken coop, the
resource adds to the property’s architectural integrity and character, though the feature itself is
not a contributing element because of the 1977 enlargement.

The only nonhistoric resources on the property are the above ground swimming pool (obscured
by the house), the pond, and the chicken coop. While the historic outbuildings and the pond have
had some alterations, land use and activities remained constant following subdivision of the
original farm parcel into smaller lots (after 1890). The surrounding landscape (beyond the current
seventy-seven are parcel) remains rural in character. Spatial organization of the house,
outbuildings, fields, pastures, and wooded areas of the farm remain unchanged in character since
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1890, and the farm has never been developed for any alternative use. Additionally, subsequent
property owners (after 1890) continued to use the house, outbuildings, and farmstead in the same
manner for which these resources originally served. Overall, the Keller Farm retains integrity and
associations that contribute to its character of a mid-to-late nineteenth-century farmstead.
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Map of Missouri Locating Gerald Missouri Official Highway Map, 1997-98
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Franklin County Map

Locating Property

From General Highway Map, Franklin County, Missouri
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Historic Atlas Locating Christian and Anna Keller Farmstead
(Note: square dot represents location of farmhouse)

From Atlas Map of St. Louis County, MO
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CHRISTIAN AND ANNA KELLER
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siTe PLAN OF PROPERTY
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